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THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

SCHEDULE PROPOSAL

DATE: September 4, 1975
FROM: Henry A. Kissinger W
VIA: Warren S. Rustand

MEETING: » A delegation of the China Council for the Promotion of
International Trade from the People's Republic of China.

N DATE: Monday, September 8, 3:30 - 3:50 p.m. or
Tuesday, September 9, 2: 00 - 2: 20 p.m.

PURPOSE: This is the first high level trade delegation the
PRC has sent to the United States. As background
for your own trip to Peking later this year, itis
recommended that you receive this delegation.

FORMAT: -Oval Office, Cabinet Room, or Rose Garden if
the weather permits.
-12 delegation members, PRC Liaison Office Chief
Huang Chen, and two representatives of the U.S.
host organization, the National Council for U.S .-
China Trade.
-20 minutes

SPEECH MATERIAL: Informal talking points, emphasizing your support
for U.S.- PRC normalization and hopes for the
development of constructive bilateral relations
through trade, will be provided.

PRESS COVERAGE: Meeting to be announced, White House press corps
and photographic coverage.
STAFF: _ Henry A. Kissinger, Brent Scowcroft
RECOMMEND: Henry A. Kissinger
OPPOSED: None
PREVIOUS: This will be the first large group from the PRC that
PARTICIPATION: you have received. TS
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BACKGROUND: To establish a positive basis for your trip to Peking
later this year, and to express your support for
normalization of U.S.~ PRC relations, I believe it is

A _ . .important for you to receive this group. Senior
- ' Chinese leaders normally receive visiting American
delegations of a stature equivalent to this trade
delegation.

APPROVE DISAPPROVE
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' MEMORANDUM

NATIONAL SECURITY couNcIL 2931

URGENT
ACTION

September 4, 1975

MEMORANDUM FOR SECRETARY KISSINGER

FROM: Richard H. Solomon Yp((é

SUBJECT: Request for a Presidential Meeting with the China
Council for the Promotion of International Trade

On September 3 you cabled approval of my memo of July 31
recommending that the President receive a delegation from the
China Council for the Promotion of International Trade.

At Tab A is a schedule proposal from yoﬁ to the President recom-
mending that he receive this delegation.

Once the proposal is approved by the President, I will prepare a
talker. In addition, I will be coordinating with the National Council
for U.S.- China Trade, the host organization, on completing physical

arrangements for the call on the President. I also will plan to take
notes at the session.

RECOMMENDATION:

That you sign the schedule proposal at Tab A.
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MEMORANDUM 5959-X
NATIONAL SECURITY COUNCIL /
ACTION %V
-SECRET/SENSITIVE September 4, 1975 @

MEMORANDUM FOR SECRETARY KISSINGER
Richard H. Solomon V&S

Backchannel to USLO Informing Them of the
Chinese Response on Proposed Dates for Your
and the President's Visits to Peking

FROM:

SUBJECT:

On the basis of Ambassidor Han Hsu's response today to your

proposals of August 12 and 14 (conveyed by Win Lord) for your visit and
that of the President to Pgking, I have drafted a backchannel message
informing USLO Deputy Chief Harry Thayer of the Chinese response.
(Ambassador Bush is at pesent in the U.S. on home leave.) We
informed USLO of the origifal demarche on August 13; hence, I

believe it would be useful td keep Deputy Chief Thayer apprised of

the most recent development

RECOMMENDATION:
That you approve the cable at

Approve ' Disapprove
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SECRET/SENSITIVE 2

would mean about October 10). Lord inquired whether the Chinese
side had any views on the length of either visit. Han replied that he

had received no instructions on this question.

3. At the Secretary's instruction, Lord also briefed Han on the

results of the recent Middle East negotiations. He pointed out that there

had been another interim step in which the Israelis would be returning
certain occupied lands to Egypt. Lord emphasized the Secretary's view that
the interim agreement is a positive development in maintaining the momentum
of the negotiations and that the U.S. intends to press ahead toward a just
settlement of regional scope and not rest content with the present

partial agreement. He added that the U.S. intends to continue to

play a role in the Middle East negotiations, and noted that the Chinese

side has repeatedly supported us in such a role. Lord also said there were
both public and private indications that the Soviets were not very happy

about this recent development in the Middle East.

4. Han indicated that the day after tomorrow he will be returning
to Peking. When asked about the length of his stay in China he said,

"at least one month."

5. Comment: While today's PRC response to our proposals on the

timing of the two visits appears positive on the surface, it does give P

SEGRET/SENSITIVE




SEERET/SENSITIVE 3

us a somewhat peculiar impression of an attempt by Peking to hold off a
final decision regarding the visit and public announcement of the
Secretary's next trip as long as possible. In addition, the time period
of more than threé weeks between the Secretary's initial proposal

and Han's response today is more of a delay than we have normally
encountered in these types of exchar.xges . While we draw no firm
conclusions from these fragmentary impressions at this time, we do
wonder whether the recent indications in PRC media of a surfacing

of political tensions may not reflect a growing distraction within the

senior leadership in Peking.

6. Warm regards.

SEEREF/SENSITIVE
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conditions imposed by the PRC, and that Peking is interfering in our
internal political affairs by setting such a condition for their trip.

There is also a rather strong and emotional reaction on the part of

the National Committee on U.S.- China Relations that the President
should not receive the PRC trade delegation today as a sign of Admin-~
istration displeasure with Peking's stand on the mayors delegation.
They want us to signal to Peking that China will "pay a price" for
politicizing exchanges, and that the USG is not afraid to risk publicly
damaging its relations with Peking if the Chinese play around with our
domestic political situation.

My own recommendation, which is supported by the EA Bureau at
State,is that we should not retaliate by cancelling the Presidential
reception today. We will have a variety of other ways we can signal
to the Chinese our displeasure and that we should be cautious

about broadening the problems we have with the Chinese in the
exchange program without fully considering related implications such
as the mood surrounding the President's trip.
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combination of the spring developments in Indochina, and our efforts
to gauge domestic political reactions to further normalization moves as
the 1976 elections approach.

-- Frankly we have not yet settled on an approach to pursue with
the Chinese given the outstanding issues in our relationship, particularly
Taiwan. I wonder what your views are on the position we should adopt?

-- From your contacts with Congressional people and White House
officials, as well as your dealings in Peking, you see both the Chinese
element in this situation and our own domestic situation. Do you think
the Chinese might be able to offer us a normalization deal which would
pass muster in the Congress and the GOP on the eve of an election?

-- What do you think is going on in China now with the new political
campaign? Some people have suggested the recent polemics are a veiled
criticism of Teng Hsiao-p'ing, or even Mao himself. Others have seen
elements of a debate on policy toward the Soviet Union and the U.S.

I wonder if you have any views on the Chinese internal situation?

~- How are you finding things in Peking after a year out there? Do
you feel we are keeping you sufficiently well-informed? As far as I am
aware we are briefing you an all developments here by one channel or
another. What is the mood of your dealings with the Chinese?

-- I gather you will be stoping off to see Al Haig on your way back
to Peking. I hope you will share with us any insights that develop from
conversations you have with him on how we might proceed in the China
relationship.

-- If there is anything more we can do for you from this office, I
hope you will let us know.
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